

BYLAWS
MISSISSIPPI COAST SPECIAL NEEDS SOCCER ASSOCIATION

Article I
MISSION

Section 1: Name and Purpose.

The purpose of the Mississippi Coast Special Needs Soccer Association is the control, regulation, promotion, development, and education of soccer for individuals of all ages with special needs in the Mississippi Gulf Coast area at all levels and ability of play.

Section 2: Mission Statement.

The mission of the Mississippi Coast Special Needs Soccer Association is to foster the physical, mental and emotional growth of Mississippi's individuals of all ages with special needs through the sport of soccer.

Section 3: Non-profit Status.

The Mississippi Coast Special Needs Soccer Association is a non-profit organization formed for the sole purpose of conducting charitable activities within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

1. The purposes for which this corporation is organized are exclusively for one or more of the purposes as specified in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
2. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these articles, this organization shall not carry on any activities not permitted by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
3. No part of the net earnings of this corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to, its members, directors or trustees, officers or other private persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes of this corporation.
4. In the event of dissolution of this organization, the residual assets shall be distributed to one or more organizations which themselves are recognized as exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose.

Article II
MEMBERSHIP

Section 1: Qualifications.

Any person over the age of eighteen (18) years of age shall be qualified for membership upon completing an application on forms provided for that purpose and payment of annual dues, if any, as set by the Board of Directors.

Section 2: Meetings.

1. Meetings of members shall be held at such time and place, as set by the Board of Directors.

2. The Annual Meeting of members for the election of directors shall be held not sooner than two (2) weeks and not later than eight (8) weeks after completion of the spring season. At the Annual Meeting, officers and directors shall be elected by and from the general membership. In addition, any other business that needs to be transacted may come before the membership.
3. Written and/or electronic notice of the Annual Meeting, including the date, place and hour shall be distributed to the membership at the direction of the President. The record date for determining the members entitled to notice or to at a member's meeting shall be ten (10) days preceding the day on which notice is given.
4. The members present at any properly called general membership meeting shall constitute a quorum. All issues to be voted on shall be decided by a simple majority of these members present and shall be the act of the membership.
5. Each member shall be entitled to one vote.

Article III

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1: Responsibilities.

Full control of the property and affairs of this corporation, the right to determine and define its policies and enact all rules for its government shall be exercised by the Board of Directors, whose major responsibilities shall include planning and evaluation, maintaining the fiscal integrity of the organization, and maintaining high moral and ethical standards. The Board of Directors shall authorize and define the powers and duties of all committees.

Section 2: Composition and election.

There shall be twelve directors elected by and from the membership of the Mississippi Coast Special Needs Soccer Association, at the Annual Membership Meeting as set forth in Article II.

Section 3: Orientation and Commitment.

Any member elected to be a director, shall be interviewed and instructed in the responsibilities of the office, and must agree to commit the time and resources necessary to fulfill the duties of the directorship by signing a "Board Consent Form" prior to being seated on the Board.

Section 4: Term of Office.

Board members shall be elected to serve a term of two (2) year, and are eligible for re-election.

Section 5: Installation.

The installation of the new Board members and officers shall be at the next Board meeting following the Annual Membership Meeting, and new members shall immediately assume office thereafter.

Section 6: Absences.

Absence from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board, without excuse deemed valid by the President, shall be construed as a resignation.

Section 7: Vacancy.

In the event of a vacancy on the Board of Directors for any reason, the unexpired term shall be filled by a nominee selected by the President, and appointed by the Board of Directors.

Section 8: Meetings.

1. Regular meetings of Directors shall be held quarterly at such time and place as may be fixed by the Board of Directors and designated in the notice of meeting. Notice of regular meetings shall be sent either via mail or email by the President to each member of the Board of Directors at least (7) days prior to the day appointed for the meeting.
2. The Executive Committee shall meet in the months in which a regularly scheduled Board Meeting is not being held.
3. The President may, when he/she deems necessary, and shall, at the written request of five (5) members of the Board, issue a call for a special meeting of the Board of Directors. Notice of special meetings shall be sent by the President to each member of the Board of Directors at least three (3) days prior to the day appointed for the meeting.
4. Whenever any notice of a meeting is required to be given to any director of this corporation under provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or the law of this state, a waiver of notice in writing signed by the director, whether before or after the time of the meeting, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice.

Section 9: Quorum.

1. Except as otherwise provided by Section 79-11-269 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended, seven (7) directors in office shall constitute a quorum of the Board of Directors.
2. Every action or decision made by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board of Directors, unless the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or provisions of law require a greater percentage or different voting rules for approval of a matter by the board.
3. Except as otherwise provided under the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or provisions of law, no business shall be considered by the board at any meeting at which the required quorum is not present, and the only motion which the Chair shall entertain at such meeting is a motion to adjourn.

Section 10: Non-liability of Directors and Indemnification.

The directors shall not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities or other obligations of the corporation. The directors and officers of the corporation shall be indemnified by the corporation to the fullest extent permissible under the laws of this state.

**Article IV
OFFICERS**

Section 1: Designation of Officers.

The officers of the corporation shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary and a Treasurer. The corporation may also have such other officers, with such duties and titles as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 2: Election and Term of Office.

Officers shall be elected at the Annual Membership meeting as set forth in Article II above. Each officer shall hold office for a term of two (2) years or until he/she resigns or is removed or is otherwise disqualified to serve, or until his or her successor shall be elected and qualified, whichever occurs first.

Section 3: Removal and Resignation.

Any officer may be removed, by the Board of Directors, at any time. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors or to the President or Secretary of the corporation. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any later date specified therein, and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 4: Vacancies.

A vacancy of any officer shall be filled by the Board of Directors. In the event of a vacancy in any office other than that of President, such vacancy may be filled temporarily by appointment by the President until such time as the Board has an opportunity to fill the vacancy.

Section 5: Duties of Officers.

1. **President.** The President shall serve as the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, supervise and control the affairs of the corporation. He/she shall perform all duties incident to his/her office and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation or by these Bylaws or which may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee Meetings, and at all meetings of the general membership. The President shall be a member ex officio, with the right to vote, of all committees, except the nominating committee.

The President shall communicate to the Board of Directors and to the general membership of the corporation such matters that, in his/her opinion, tend to promote the general welfare of and increase the usefulness of the corporation.

The President shall cause to be kept the minutes of all meetings of the membership, Board of Directors, and of the Executive Committee; shall authenticate records of the corporation; shall conduct all correspondence; shall carry into execution all orders, votes, or resolutions, as may be required; and shall perform such other duties incident to the office of President.

2. **Vice-President.** In the absence or disability of the President, the Vice-President shall exercise the powers and authority and perform the duties of the President. The Vice-President shall also perform such other duties as may be assigned by the President.
3. **Secretary.** The Secretary shall certify and keep at the principal office of the corporation or at such other place as the board may determine the original, or a copy, of these Bylaws as amended or otherwise altered to date.

The Secretary shall keep at the principal office of the corporation or at such other place as the board may determine, a book of minutes of all meetings of the directors, and, if applicable, meetings of committees of directors and of members, recording therein the time and place of holding, whether regular or special, how called, how notice thereof was given, the names of those present or represented at the meeting and the proceedings thereof. The Secretary shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law.

The Secretary shall be custodian of the records, membership book, and of the seal of the corporation and affix the seal, as authorized by law or the provisions of these Bylaws, to duly executed documents of the corporation. The Secretary shall exhibit at all reasonable times to any director of the corporation, or to his/her agent or attorney, on request therefore, the Bylaws, the membership book and the minutes of the proceedings of the directors of the corporation.

In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation or by these Bylaws or which may be assigned to him or her from time to time by the Board of Directors.

4. **Treasurer.** The Treasurer shall have charge and custody of, and be responsible for, all funds and securities of the corporation, and for their proper disbursement. Such funds shall be kept on deposit in the name of the corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as approved by the Board of Directors. All checks are required to have two (2) signatures and are to be signed by the President, Treasurer, or another person designated by the Board. The Treasurer shall present a monthly financial report to the Board and a yearly financial report to the general membership. The Treasurer shall perform such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of the corporation or by these Bylaws or which may be assigned to him or her from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Article V COMMITTEES

Section 1: Executive Committee.

There shall be a committee composed of the President, the Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer, which shall constitute an Executive Committee. The President will serve as the Chairman of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall take such action(s) as may be necessary for the conduct of the business of the corporation, and may act on behalf of the corporation in any matter, when the Board of Directors is not in session, reporting to the Board for ratification of this action at the next regular or special meeting of the Board. Board of Directors may delegate to such committee the powers and authority of the board in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, to the extent permitted, and except as may otherwise be provided, by provisions of law. By a majority vote of its members, the board may at any time revoke or modify any or all of the Executive Committee authority so delegated. The Executive Committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings, cause them to be filed with the corporate records and report the same to the board from time to time as the board may require.

Section 2: Nomination Committee.

The President, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, shall appoint three (3) members of the Board of Mississippi Coast Special Needs Soccer Association, as the Nomination Committee. Such committee shall have the duty to nominate, candidates for the Board of Directors and officers, and to deliver the list of nominations to the President (such nominations must be accompanied by a “Board Consent Form”), so that the nominations can be included in the notice of the Annual General Membership meeting. Independent nominations for the Board of Directors and/or officers may also be made at the Annual General Membership Meeting provided a “Board Consent Form” has been executed by the nominee.

Section 3: Other Committees.

The corporation shall have such other committees as may from time to time be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors. These committees may consist of persons who are not also members of the board and shall act in an advisory capacity to the Board.

**Article VI
PROCEDURAL AUTHORITY**

The current edition of Roberts Rules of Order shall be the final source of authority in all questions of parliamentary procedure when such rules are not inconsistent with the Bylaws of the Mississippi Coast Special Needs Soccer Association.

**Article VII
AMMENDMENTS OF BYLAWS**

These Bylaws may be amended or altered by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board of Directors, or by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members at any regular or special meeting, providing that the notice of the meeting includes the proposals for amendments. Any proposed amendments or alternatives shall be submitted to the Board or the members in writing and/or electronically, at least ten (10) days in advance of the meeting in which they are to be acted upon.

**Article VIII
BOARD NOMINATING PROCEDURES FOR THE FIRST YEAR**

During the first year of the organization, the initial incorporators shall appoint the twelve (12) members to the Board of Directors. Thereafter, vacant directorships shall be elected for two (2) year terms at the annual membership meeting as set forth above.

**Article IX
Financial Year**

The financial year of Mississippi Coast Special Needs Soccer Association Inc. shall start 1st of august each year and end 31st of July the following year. All financial reports shall indicate the season year and the month of the report.

ADOPTION OF BY-LAWS

We, the undersigned, are all of the directors or incorporators of this corporation, and we consent to, and hereby do, adopt the foregoing By-laws, consisting of seven (7) pages as the By-laws of this corporation.

This is the _____ day of _____, 20____.
